
 
 

 
 
 

WEDNESDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2021 
 
 

TO: THE CABINET MEMBER FOR LEADER  
 
 
I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A VIRTUAL MEETING OF 
THE CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE 
LEADER WHICH WILL BE HELD AT 10.00 AM, ON 
WEDNESDAY, 15TH DECEMBER, 2021 FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE 
ATTACHED AGENDA. 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 
Democratic Officer: Martin S. Davies 

Telephone (direct line): 01267 224059 

E-Mail: MSDavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Document Pack



 
 

 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.   

2. DECISIONS RECORD - 19TH NOVEMBER 2021.  3 - 4 

3. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT 
FUNDS: TARGETED FINANCE FUND.  

5 - 16 

 
 
 
Note:- The  press and public are not entitled to attend the meeting. The decision record will 
be published normally within 3 working days. 



 
 

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE LEADER 
 

FRIDAY, 19 November 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor E. Dole (Cabinet Member). 
 
The following officers were in attendance: 
C. Owen, Bureau Officer; 
A.J. Rees, Bureau Officer; 
M.S. Davies, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Virtual Meeting: 9.30 am - 10.00 am 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of personal interest. 
 

2. DECISIONS RECORD - 14TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
RESOLVED that the decision record of the meeting held on the 14th 
September, 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 

3. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUNDS: 
TARGETED FINANCE FUND, MYNYDD Y BETWS COMMUNITY BENEFIT 
FUND & FOOD POVERTY FUND 
 
RESOLVED that the following applications for assistance from the Targeted 
Finance Fund, Mynydd y Betws Community Benefit Fund and Food Poverty 
Fund be approved subject to the usual terms and conditions and those 
specified in the report:  
 

Targeted Finance Fund 

Applicant Award 

Llanarthne Village Hall £20,000.00 

 

Mynydd y Betws Community Benefit Fund 

Applicant Award 

The Hangout £4,485.00 

Betws Community Council £15,000.00 

Penygroes Memorial Hall & Institute £8,290.80 

Menter Cwm Gwendraeth Elli £15,000.00 

Cwmaman Town Council £15,000.00 

Parent Teacher Association (PTA), Ysgol Gymraeg Rhydaman £8,816.50 

 

Food Poverty Fund 

Applicant Award 

CETMA £7,230.00 

Llandovery Youth and Community Centre £3,976.40 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 

Swper.box CIC £6,230.89 

South Cefncaeau (Ty Enfys) Family Centre £1,483.97 

 
 
 
 
 

 
__________________________    __________________ 
CABINET MEMBER     DATE 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE LEADER 

15/12/2021 
 

Cabinet Member: Portfolio: 

Cllr. Emlyn Dole Cabinet Member Decisions Meeting for the Leader 

 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUNDS:  

TARGETED FINANCE FUND  

Recommendations / key decisions required: 
 
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1 
2 Applications – Total Value = £39,968.00 
 
 
Total Number of Applications - 2     Total Value = £39,968.00 
 

Reasons:  
Development of Sustainable Communities within Carmarthenshire 
 

Directorate 

Name of Head of Service: 

Helen Morgan 

 

Report Author: 

Abigail Rees 

Jon Hancock 

Designations: 

Development Manager Regen 
& Policy 

 

 

Bureau Officer 

Bureau Manager 

 

Tel: 01267 242367 

HLMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk 

 

Tel: 01269 590216 

AJaRees@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

JonHancock@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): None 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): N/A 

 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 

                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting 
 

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 6



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE LEADER 

15th December 2021 

 

Financial Assistance from the following grant funds:  

Targeted Finance Fund 
 

To approve the following: 

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED: 

 
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1 
2 Applications – Total Value = £39,968.00 
 
 
Total Number of Applications - 2     Total Value = £39,968.00 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED  YES 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report:Signed:     Helen L Morgan                                         Development Manager Regeneration & Policy 

                                           

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

NONE NONE  NONE  NONE NONE   NONE  NONE  

 
CONSULTATIONS 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed: Helen L Morgan                                                          Development Manager Regeneration & Policy 

1.Local Member(s) As per individual report 

2.Community / Town Council   As per individual report 

3.Relevant Partners   As per individual report 

4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations As per individual report 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 

Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

Targeted Finance Fund TFF-21-03 
TFF-21-05 

County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
ANNEX  

Targeted Finance Fund 2021-2022 
Report Author: AJaRees@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01269 590216 
Balance Available - £60,415.00 

 
Report Value - £39,968.00 

 
 

1 of 2 
 

Application Reference: TFF-21-03 
 

Project Title Digitalising, upskilling and vocationally supporting those living in 
emotional and digital poverty 

  

Applicant CYCA – Connecting Youth Children and Adults   

Ward Glanymor 

Key Account 

Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a KAM client they 
must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the following 
3 categories:  
 

 Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be 
sustainable and create employment  

 Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs 

 Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 
communities 

 

Project 

Description 

CYCA is continuing to develop their commercial model to sustain services and 
balance the income generation of the charity, so that they are not wholly reliant 
on funding. The project they are proposing will safeguard the Senior Strategic 
Business Manager role, providing 24 hours a week of salary safeguarding and 
enabling continuity of this very important element of CYCA.  This is a bespoke 
service for CYCA and a unique service and opportunity they feel that they can 
provide to those who are also in need of wider training, mentoring, and 
counselling to build up resilience and wellbeing.  
 
The group currently contracts a consultant to deliver all their marketing/ social 
media/ website/ digitalisation work, initially through Lloyds Bank Foundation 
funding, but over the last year they have paid for this directly.  The cost for this 
is an amount that the group cannot maintain, and while considering upskilling 
the existing team, primarily the Senior Strategic Business Manager, they 
decided this would also be an opportunity to train their volunteers and service 
user for wider benefit and added value. 
 
CYCA’s current Senior Strategic Business Manager can oversee the project, 
which will provide job continuity to this role, whilst upskilling and supporting the 
service users in marketing, web development and digital marketing and 
activities.  The aim is then to develop two future part time posts for 
volunteers/service users – one 8 hour a week post to deliver their marketing 
and social media needs, the other 8 hour a week post to develop their website 
and help with their digital activity, as a longer-term goal.  We will pay the 
consultant to train up both the Senior Strategic Business Manager (for ongoing 
consistency and oversite) and an approved cohort of volunteers and service 
users in the bespoke marketing activities needed by CYCA, as well as training 

Page 9

mailto:AJaRees@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 
 

in Umbraco, the web platform the new CYCA website has been built on.  
Training will also be given in developing newsletters and assisting with setting 
up and promoting online events and training.  
 

Economic Benefit  

 Number of individuals into training/education - 10 

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 10 

 Number of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises supported - 1 

 Number of jobs created – x 2 part time roles – at the end of the 

project  

 Number of jobs safeguarded – 1 

 Public and private leverage funding - £14,150 

 

Additional outputs: 

 Reduce mental ill health in the county – 10 

 Reduce digital poverty – 10  

 

Total Project Cost 

 

Eligible Capital 

 

Eligible Revenue 

 

Ineligible Costs 

 

Amount and % of  

grant requested 

 

Match funding 

£34,118.00 
 

N/A 
 

£34,118.00 
 

N/A 
 
 

£19,968.00 (58.53%) 
 
 

£14,150.00 Own Funds secured 
 
 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 

 Cllr. Louvain Roberts 

 Cllr John Prosser 

 

Evidence of Need / 

Community 

Engagement 

CYCA work directly with the community and consult with them regularly.  They 
are aware that many of their service users are building their confidence to be 
work-ready and are also aware that since COVID-19 there are more roles and 
opportunities for those with digital skills.  This has exposed the need for 
organisations to bring inhouse additional skills around digital delivery, online 
marketing and supporting virtual services. 
The wider community will eventually benefit from a cohort of individuals that will 
have been upskilled, enabling them to gain volunteering roles, or employment 
opportunities as a result. 
Specifically, the group support young mums, the wider family unit, and young 
people, many of which are living in emotional poverty and over the 40 years of 
service, CYCA have learned that true resilience comes from a package of 
support services. This project will become a new element of that package. 
 

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

 

 Carmarthenshire County Council Corporate strategy 2018-2023 

 Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 

Page 10



 
 

 Equality Act 2010 

 Carmarthenshire County Council Wellbeing Plan 2018 -2023 

 Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 2013-2030 

 Regional Delivery Plan for Employment and Skills for Southwest and 
Central Wales 2014-2024  

 Welsh Government ‘Digital Strategy for Wales’ 

 Social Services Well-being Act 

 Child Poverty Strategy for Wales 

 Welsh Government Tackling Poverty Action Plan 

 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015   
 

Ownership/Lease Lease  

Business 

Plan/Officer 

Comments 

including details of 

support moving 

forward/next steps 

linked to growth 

and sustainability 

 
In addition to upskilling and training this group of service users, CYCA would also 
be preparing individuals for work placements as well as continuing to work with 
partner organisations.  They will also eventually be able to offer two part-time 
digital and marketing roles supporting and eventually taking over from the 
existing consultant.   
The group have realised during the pandemic the lack of skills and personnel 
able to work on the marketing and online elements for the organisation, now the 
risk and gap has been exposed, this funding will enable CYCA to plug the gap, 
eliminate the risk and provide so much more to their service users and the 
wider community. 
Digital inclusion will remain high on CYCA’s agenda and as such this will be 
embedded into all aspects of the business.  They will continue to run the project 
past this round of funding and will ensure this by developing an effective 
marketing strategy, monitor, evaluate and communicate the project’s 
effectiveness and ensure continuity of staff and volunteers.  
 

 

Recommendation 

 

Award - £19,968.00 

 

Subject to: 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 

 
 
 

2 of 2  
 

Application Reference: TFF-21-05 
 

Project Title Brynamman Public Hall Stage Lighting System Upgrade  

Applicant Brynamman Public Hall and Institute  

Ward Cwarter Bach  

Key Account 

Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a KAM client they 
must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the following 
3 categories:  
 

 Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be 
sustainable and create employment  

 Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs 

 Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 
communities 

 

Project 

Description 

 
The wide use of the stage has been the core of Brynamman Public Hall since 
the 1920s and has provided the community with a central hub of recreational 
activity for nearly 100 years. The trustees wish to keep the stage up to a fully 
usable standard for the large number of schools, community groups and clubs 
that benefit from the facility. To do this, an overhaul and upgrade to the stage 
lighting system needs to take place. 
 
Adaptations and upgrades need to be put in place to secure the usability and 
longevity of this vital facility in the future.  The Trustees also recognise that 
putting on live performances at the Hall is not an easy task due to the outdated 
facilities. Only very few staff members are adequately trained to manipulate and 
operate the current equipment, and often more modern equipment needs to be 
sourced from outside, such as paying to hire equipment for a particular 

performance from an equipment rental company.  Keeping the venue in line 
with expected performance equipment specification will also make the Hall 
more attractive to outside touring companies. Shows that are brought from 
outside the community to the Hall offer a chance for the community of 
Brynamman and the surrounding villages to enjoy entertainment right on their 
doorstep at a fraction of the cost of travelling to a town or city and visiting a 
larger venue.  
 
The grant funding will be spent in three ways as part of this project: 

• The purchase of new stage lighting equipment to be installed within the 
Public Hall, including electrical cabling and accessories, internally wired 
bars for the safe rigging of lights, and a package of modern, energy 
efficient LED stage lighting fixtures. 

• The professional installation of the above equipment. Existing 
equipment and infrastructure will need to be removed and/or modified to 
accommodate the new equipment. Some minor structural work to the 
stage rigging area and a significant amount of electrical work will be 
undertaken as part of the project. 

• The provisioning and testing of the new installation and equipment by a 
professional theatrical equipment installation and testing company. 

 

Page 12



 
 

The project will see the installation of industry standard equipment and 
systems, which will greatly enhance the current usability of the stage, but also 
future proof the venue for many years to come. Creating a solid foundation for a 
range of stage lighting equipment and adaptation is at the forefront of the 
planning process.  The project will create a far more sustainable approach to 
live events at the hall, and the application has demonstrated great awareness 
of this by looking to source the installation of a system built entirely around the 
use of LED fixtures, disregarding the need of older and outdated technologies 
that aren’t as flexible or energy efficient.  The project will also have a huge 
focus on recycling. Most materials removed will be recycled or reused.  
 
This project will ensure that opportunities for employment, training and 
community benefit will continue in this form at the venue. These opportunities 
will also expand after the project is complete. 
 

Economic Benefit  

 Number of individuals into training/education - 14 

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 14 

 Number of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises supported - 1 

 Number of jobs created - 0 

 Number of jobs safeguarded – 8 paid  

 Volunteering opportunities - 16  

 Public and private leverage funding - £15,000.00 

 

Total Project Cost 

 

Eligible Capital 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eligible Revenue 

 

Ineligible Costs 

 

Amount and % of  

grant requested 

 

Match funding 

£35,000.00 (Net) 
 

Main lighting bars  
Side Boom and side lighting  

DMX System  
Main distribution board  

Package of LED lanterns  
 

£42,000 (gross) - £7,000(VAT) = £35,000 
 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
£20,000.00 (57.14%) 

 
 

£15,000.00 
Awards for All - £10,000 (applied for) 

Public Hall and Institute £5,000 (secured) 
 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 Cllr Glynog Davies  

 Ammanford Community Theatre (letter of support) 

 Cylch Meithrin (letter of support) 

 

Evidence of Need / 

Community 

Engagement 

Brynamman Public Cinema is the only venue of its kind in the area.  Venues 
that survived demolition slightly further afield such as Pontardawe Arts Centre 
and Ammanford Miners Theatre are both examples of venues that were closed 
for a very long period, and reopened years later after full refurbishment. 

Page 13



 
 

Brynamman never once closed, and still to this day is completely independent 
and run by the committee of trustees who are descendants of the many ex 
miners and people of the community that helped to run the hall for the last 
century. 
For the Public Hall to be able to offer the stage as a facility, upgrades to this 
system need to be put in place. This will ensure that the Hall remains an 
attractive venue for touring companies, but it also means that the local groups 
and community who benefit from the stage facilities will have access to modern 
equipment which will increase training opportunities and broaden the potential 
for performing arts at the venue. 
 
The Hall has strong relationships with numerous members of the community 
who rely on the facilities available at the venue.  Examples of current groups 
are Cylch Meithrin, Brynamman Primary School, Ammanford Community 
Theatre, Amman Valley School of Dance, and the halls Volunteering 
Programme.   
 

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

The project addresses key themes in the following strategies: 
 
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act: 
Brynamman Public Hall contributes heavily to the prosperity of the community by 
providing services, entertainment, and recreation to Brynamman and 
surrounding villages.  The venue brings culture to the community by showcasing 
a wide variety of films and entertainment within. One of their big goals for 2021 
was to explore more independent film, specifically Welsh independent film, which 
would be aiming to make a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language.  
Another current goal is to make the Public Hall even more accessible, giving 
those who can’t usually visit the cinema or theatre the opportunity to enjoy the 
experience just like anyone else, working towards a more resilient and equal 
Wales.   
 
 

Councils Corporate Strategy 2018-2023: 

 Create more jobs and growth throughout the county 

 Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) 

 Support good connections with friends, family, and safer communities 

 A Council wide approach to support Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 

 Promote Welsh Language and Culture 

 Age Well  

 Provide healthy, prosperous, and safe environments  
 
Volunteering Programme 
The hall currently runs a very successful volunteering programme which allows 
for individuals in the area and beyond to meet new people, which can help with 
combating social isolation, learn new skills and be actively involved in 
community projects.   
 

 Increase community outreach  

 Investing in tool to make staff more productive 

 Increase reliability of operations 
 

Ownership/Lease Ownership 

Business 

Plan/Officer 

Comments 

including details of 

 
Upon completion of the project, the Public Hall will be fully equipped with an up 
to date, industry standard, energy efficient stage lighting system.  The group have 
addressed how the equipment and infrastructure that is being installed will 
require general maintenance on a regular basis going forward.  

Page 14



 
 

support moving 

forward/next steps 

linked to growth 

and sustainability 

 
In terms of potential growth, renewing the staging area will allow the hall to 
explore more live programming opportunities with the aim of increasing the 
number of live performances.  Also, with the potential of more shows, this could 
be of financial benefit to the Hall for increasing the opportunity for charitable and 
donated stage use.  The outcomes of the project will engage with a mixture of 
employees, trustees, and volunteers. The volunteering program is incredibly 
successful at the hall, and this will only enhance the opportunities they can 
provide. 
 
As part of KAM function, Brynamman Public Hall will receive regular support from 
the Bureau to assist and ensure outputs and targets are achieved and the project 
maintains its sustainability. 
 

 

Recommendation 

 

Award - £20,000.00 

 

Subject to: 

 

 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECISIONS RECORD - 19TH NOVEMBER 2021.
	3 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUNDS: TARGETED FINANCE FUND.
	Annex


